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A vision for the [uture. Values rooted in the past.




echnology is dramatically changing the way we
live. At an astonishing pace, we have become
computer literate. Banking by Automated

Teller Machines (ATMs) is a basic example of

these changes. Not so long ago, few among us

were comfortable making deposits or with-
drawals by pushing buttons on a machine. Now it’s second nature and an
expected convenience.

Yet within this age of lightening-fast change, it serves us well to pause
for a moment and reflect. Yes, electronics are helping to improve our quality
of life, but impersonal machines can never replace basic human interaction.

Our humanity, after all, is what distinguishes us. How we talk,
smile, care about, and relate to one another makes us companions and
friends. It is what allows us to enjoy the company of workmates, family
members, and customers.

As we present our 1997 Annual Report, we are proud to elaborate on
our vision for the future and the technological advances we are introducing
to better serve you.

At the same time, we wish to celebrate the values that have built the
reputation of Hingham Institution for Savings over the past 163 years. To
do this credibly, we must acknowledge and commend the people who work
here. Without our friendly, helpful, and caring staff; this bank would not be
the success it is today. Nor would it be able to look forward confidently to

continued growth tomorrow.

FroOM THE PRESIDENT

To Qur Stockholders

During 1997 we not only achieved record
financial success but also invested heavily in
technological improvements that will position us for
future success.

Our net income for 1997 was $2.7 million, a 30%
increase over that of 1996. These are the highest
carnings in our 163 year history. All other indicia of
success were equally impressive. The increase in
earnings was fueled principally by the vigorous growth
rate of our assets, in excess of 10%, and the effective
control of operating expenses. Our total assets
increased from $202 million to $223 million. Our
efficiency ratio (non-interest operating expenses as a
percent of operating income) of 49.67% compares
quite favorably with that of our competitors. We were
successful in increasing our loan portfolio by 14% and,
at the same time, increasing the yield on that portfolio.
Our Return on Assets increased from 1.10% to 1.26%,
and our Return on Equity increased from 11.06% to
13.00%. Our earnings per share increased from $1.57
to $2.04.

These achievements translated into concrete and
immediate benefits to our stockholders. We were able
to improve the declared dividends to stockholders from
$0.45 per share to $0.59 per share, a 31% increase. The
market value of our stock increased by over 50%, far
outpacing all of the major indexes.

While our accomplishments of the past year are
noteworthy, we are fully cognizant of the increasing
intensity of competition. We realize that continued
progress will require continued improvement. This
can only be achieved by the blending of our traditional
personal service with an increased utilization of state-
of-the-art technology. During 1997 we invested '
heavily in efforts to upgrade our technology. We
completed a conversion of our data processing to a data
center which is capable of supporting the most
sophisticated applications. We installed new wide and
local area networks as well as new hardware in all of our
locations. This placform is allowing us to implement a
number of product improvements. This improvement
entailed a major investment of time and attention from
all of our staff as well as a significant financial
commitment. These efforts have positioned us to
credibly claim a level of product sophistication that
when combined with our level of personal service,
make us the most attractive banking alternative in our
local market. We are confident that consumers will
continue to prefera local institution to a national chain
if the local bank can offer both technological
competence and individual attention.

Our rightful pride in the accomplishments of
1997 is muted by the deep sadness we all experienced
with the loss of Robert H. Gaughen, Sr. in November.
My father’s courage and persistence were critical
elements in our bank’s survival and success during
turbulent times. His great enthusiasm for work and for
life remains an inspiration for his family, his fellow
board members, and for all of us who work at the bank.
We will honor his memory by renewing our efforts to
develop a bank that uniquely provides for the needs of
our stockholders, employees, and community well into
the next century.

Thanking you for your continued support,

%ery ruly yours, :
Robert H. Gaughen, 3

President and C.E. O,

I am,
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Technology with a purpose.

Hingham Institution for Savings won’t invest in new technology if the end result
isn’t better service for our customers. To that end, we are introducing new electronics
in a sensible and practical manner.

For instance, we now have a MasterMoney® ATM/Debit Card. It’s a Hingham
Institution for Savings bank card that’s as simple to use as a credit card but works like a
check. It allows you to access cash at any ATM machine where you see the NYCE® and
CIRRUS® network symbols. In addition, you can pay for purchases where you see the
MasterCard® symbol. Your account at Hingham is automatically debited, eliminating
the need to write a check. This makes banking and shopping easier and more
convenient.

On the commercial side, our new technology means we can offer local businesses a

Commercial Sweep Account. With this capability, allocated funds in business

customers” accounts can be moved each night into higher earning accounts such as : : '
Banking with a personality.

Money Market accounts. The great benefit is that the process is automatic, and business , .
J = ; ’ Savings bank passbooks have been around for as long as there have been savings

customers” moncy is working hard for them while they sleep. banks. At Hingham, we’re happy to say that many still find them invaluable and use

them on a regular basis. For our customers, it’s an excellent way to keep track of their
savings and to encourage a new generation to develop the savings habit. For us, it's a
great way to keep in touch with our customers.

Personal contact is important. It means we can put a face to the account, a name
to the transaction, and show neighborly concern when appropriate. The essence of
community banking, after all, is people, not dollars and cents. It is reflected in the

p— B gratitude of the senior citizen we protect from a scam and the enthusiasm of the

T.0.1.5. 11 for Visien

-
w T - Teller Functioss
= B " H j

grammar school students that we visit cach week.

Our customers look to the trusted relationship they have built with us. They know,

- Joursal i
s :tﬂ-m
_hﬂ-'-

- ey _.-“

UISER8563

few

~IF Caleslations

inter Nedirect
Statement
Emulator

FISERV

FISERY -
FISERY

broeg termANAd teln 0000 models 2-11-%

i

for example, that our passbooks come with no fees, that rates are always fair, and our loan
terms are flexible.

We recently introduced a “Completely Free Checking” service and, unlike many
big banks, we return your canceled checks. You can still buy Savings Bonds in any
branch. If this sounds like friendly, caring banking, then it has served our purpose

admirably. We wouldn’t have it any other way.



Reaching out across the branches.

Our data processing system, which at
one time was considered quite sophisti-
cated, has now been replaced with a state-
of-the-art data processing center that
makes us more efficient and more
productive.

We have improved our computer
systems by having Local Area Networks
and Wide Area Networks installed to link
our departments internally and allow us to
communicate instantly and seamlessly
with our branch offices. So whichever
branch you visit, we will have the relevant
information right at our fingertips,
resulting in faster and more accurate
transactions.

We also have the technology in place to
offer combined, easy-to-follow statement
listings of your monthly account balances
and transactions. Ata glance, you'll know
the status of your savings, checking, CDs,
loans, and other bank accounts.

Thanks to sophisticated technology, we

now are capable of implementing a
signature verification program which is virtually foolproof and provides excellent
protection for every customer.

Soon we will be introducing Telephone Banking, allowing customers to transfer
funds, get account information, and make loan payments without writing checks. All

you do is make one convenient phone call any time day or night.

Reaching out across the harbor.

Large, multinational financial insti-

tutions can boast of their global reach.

Our claims are more modest in scope but
more personal in focus. We are aggres-
sively working to better serve our
customers wherever we can.

Those who travel back and forth to
Boston by the Hingham commuter boats
will have noticed the Hingham Institu-
tion for Savings ATM machine at the
dockside. Judging by the transaction
records, it has proven to be a terrific
convenience for many.

It is said that if a bank makes a point
of thorotghly understanding the commu-
nity, it can successfully meet its needs.
This is one instance where that has proven
to be correct. As an added benefit, we
never surcharge for using our ATMs —a
welcome difference from many of the
large national chains.

Our continued emphasis on residen-

tial mortgages is also in keeping with our

determination to reach out to our
neighbors. We continue to be a leader in financing home ownership in neighborhoods
throughout our area.

What's more, a mortgage from Hingham Institution for Savings is likely to stay here
and not be sold to an out-of-state bank or investor. Our customers tell us that there is
nothing more frustrating than dealing with an out-of-area loan servicer with an
impenetrable voice mail system. If our loan customers have a question, they can call us

or stop by for a visit. In either case, they get a human response. It’s that easy.



Toward a stronger community.

As regional banks continue to consolidate into even larger institutions which
place greater emphasis on self-described efforts to become “broadly integrated and
diversified financial service providers on a global scale,” we provide an excellent
alternative.

We believe, for instance, that one of the best ways to serve our community is to help
build the businesses within it. At Hingham Institution for Savings we have a
very active commercial lending program.

No bank on the South Shore knows the local commercial real estate climate better
or is more current on expansion and development opportunitics. We will continue to
reach out to area businesses so that we can better understand their needs and goals.

While commerce is fundamentally important, we understand that there are other
sectors that are vital to the life of our community. Hingham Institution for Savings is
proud to be associated in a meaningful way with many area not-for-profit organizations
such as Habitat for Humanity, The Thayer House Assisted Living Facility,
Glastonbury Abbey, the Montessori School, and the South Shore Conservatory.

We are convinced that our bank can thrive and grow only to the extent that all of
our community thrives and grows. Neither can succeed independent of the other. This

is a philosophy we live by every day.

Toward a brighter future.

Hingham Institution will continue to deliver quality financial services to our
customers, including new technology, as it becomes available. This past year we have
installed the necessary technological platform on which to build. In the immediate
future we anticipate the introduction of electronic banking products such as Home
Banking through PCs and Voice Response Banking via a 24-hour direct phone link.

Sophisticated services such as these will allow the bank to remain competitive and
be attractive to an ever-increasing customer base. In fact, as a computer-literate younger
generation matures, it expects such services.

We will also remain true to our commitment to provide friendly, personable service
on all levels throughout the bank. We feel we know our regular customers by name, and
every member of our staff is accessible to answer questions and help with applications
and forms.

Innovative services are not possible without a dedicated and thoroughly
professional staff, and we consider ourselves extremely fortunate in this area. Not only
are they skilled, they have many years of experience and loyalty to the bank.

As a local bank, we are extremely proud of the role we play in our communities.
While information technology will change the way we deliver services, it won’t change

the neighborly spirit that characterizes Hingham Institution for Savings.
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Financiar HIGHLIGHTS

Solid asset growth continued in 1997 with the loan portfotio
accounting for nearly 78% of total assets. Meanwhile, the
bank continued to surpass all regulatory capital mainie-
nance regquiremenis and reporied capital to assets of 9.60%.

Assets
$201,586

$153,192

1995
{In Thousands}

Deposits $150015

1997 marks the third consecutive year for deposit growth with more
than a $10.0 miflion increase over 1996. A recent system upgrade will
allow the Bank to improve its existing deposit products and offer com-
plamentary services to customers.

3 |
1995
(In Thousands)

Nearly $56.0 million loans were originated in 1997, resulting
iteadl in a remarkable 14% growth over 1996. More than 99% of
the loan portfolio Is secured by mortgages.

Dividends Declared
Per Share

Quarterly dividends continue te show steady improvement with
the dividend payout ratio approaching 30%. Special dividends
were declared in each of the past three years culminating in a
$0.13 per share special dividend in the fourth quarter of 1997,

Pre-Tax

Earnings .
The results for 1997 represent the fourth consecutive year

of double-digit increases in pre-tax earnings. Pre-tax earn-
ings for 1897 rose 24% over those of 1996.

1994 1995
(in Thousands)

The Bank's stock price has risen dramatically over the past
three years, improving by $10 per share, or more than 50%,
during 1997 alone.

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 1JATA

The following information does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirely by the more detailed

information contained elsewhere herein,

Balance Shest Data;

Total 388818
investment securities .o
Loans:

Residential Mortgage ..............
Commercial Mortgage ...
Construction, net ...

Foreciosed real astate, net .............
DEepositS ..o
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Other borrowed funds ...,
Stockholders’ equity ...oooeer e

Income Statement Data:
Total interest and dividend income .
Total interest exXpense ..oo.eeeeeens
Net interest income .....ccocccveeeee.
Provision for loan iosses ..................
Other INCOME cviveee e cnaens
Oparaling exXpenses ..o,

..............................

Income {loss) before income taxes ...

Income tax provision (benefit)..........

Net INCOME oo
Earnings pershare....................

Earnings per share - assuming
diiition for stock options............

Financial Ratios:

Return on average assets ..............
Return on average equity................
Average equity to average assets....
Interest rate spread.......ccven e
Net vield on average earning assets
Dividend payout ratio ...,
Cash dividends declared per share

At December 31,
1997 1498 1845 1994 1993
' {in Thousands)
$202 584 $201,586 $175,409 $153,192 $147,889
35,369 32,321 39,152 42,830 58,904
84,092 79,418 69,872 61,607 54,222
84,362 67,008 44 667 34,651 20,600
4 857 5,421 5,437 4,648 1,951
1,208 938 1,066 1,116 1,525
1,560 1,383 1,277 1,338 1,191
o e 34 439 2,384
160,506 150,015 133,042 116,684 117,717
38,147 29,754 22,000 19,000 15,000
319 188 — —_ —
21,377 18,212 17,818 15,981 14,074
Years Ended December 31,
1947 1296 1685 1994 1843
{in Thousands, Except Per Share Ampunis}
$ 16,405 § 13,962 & 12,074 $§ 598963 § 9,232
8,160 6,956 5,871 4,324 4,593
8,245 7,006 6,203 5,839 4,639
174 107 120 120 63
653 614 509 842 1,484
4,458 4,066 3,641 3,860 6,340
4,266 3,447 2,951 2,301 {(280)
1,607 1,403 1,045 (255) (469)
$ 2659 $ 2044 $ 1906 $ 2556 & 189
5 204 § 1587 % 1.47 $ 1.99 0.15
$ 200 § 156 & 1.46 $ 198 % 0.15
1.26% 1.10% 1.17% 1.70% 0.13%
13.00 11.06 11.11 17.09 1.34
9.67 9.94 10.54 9.94 9.52
3.48 3.38 3.42 3.55 3.06
4.02 3.80 3.96 3.92 3.34
28.92 28.66 23.81 8.54 —
$ 059 % 045 $ 035 $ 017 § —
i1
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Founded in 1834, Hingham Institution for Savings has
served the local communily for more than 163 years. On
December 20, 1988, the Bank converted its ownership
from mutual to stock form. Banking services are provided
through branch offices in Hingham, South Hinghamn, Hull,
Scituate and Cohasset.

The following information should be read in conjunc-
tion with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes contained in this report.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS 1997, 1996, and 1895

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 1997, the Bank
earned $2.7 million, as compared to $2.0 million in 1996
and $1.9 million in 1995. Earnings per share were $2.04
in 1997, $1.57 in 1996, and $1.47 in 1995. On a dilutive
basis, which assumes that certain stock options have
been exercised, earnings per share were $2.00 in 1997,
$1.56 in 1996, and $1.46 in 1995.

)ISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net interest income increased nearly 18% when com-
paring 1997 to 1996, and increased nearly 13% when
comparing 1996 to 1995. Customer service tees have
risen gradually over the past three years resulting from
growth in deposit accounts and transactions and a mod-
est increase in the Bank's fee schedule. When compar-
ing 1997 to 1998, operating expenses increased
$392,000, resulting primarily from salary and employee
benefit expenses, costs incurred during a data center
conversion and computer system upgrade. Operating
expenses increased $425,000 when comparing 1996 to
1995, resulting primarily from the addition of two branch
offices in late 1995.

Net Interest Income

The Bank reported $8.2 million in net interest income
for 1997 as compared to $7.0 million in 1996, and $6.2
million in 1995. This positive trend was primarily the
result of significant growth in loans which averaged
$163.0 million for 1997 as compared to $136.8 million for
1996 and $109.8 million for 1995.

The following table presents information regarding changes in interest and dividend income and inter-
est expense of the Bank for the years indicated. For each category, information is provided with respect fo
changes attributable to changes in rate (change in rate multiplied by old volume) and changes in volume
(change in volume muitiplied by old rate). The change aftributable to both volume and rate is allocated

proportionately to the changes due to volume and rate.

Years Ended December 31,

1897 Compared to 1996 1996 Compared to 1995
Increase (Decrease) increase (Decrease)
Due o Due to
Volume Rate Total Volame Hate Total
*(In Thousands) '
interest and dividend income:
Tt JOBNS 1o ove et e e $ 2226 $ 216 $2.442 $ 2263 $(i44) 32,119
investment securities and
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ... {41) 43 2 (326) 48 (278)
Interest-bearing deposits............cooenn, _ (8) 7 (1) 72 (25) 47
Total interest and dividend income ..... 2,177 266 2,443 2,009 (121) 1,888
Interest expense: ' '
DEPOSHS voivvirivr e 694 (57) 837 946 41 987
BOITOWINGS ooooeiiivcirevr e aesaeee e 569 {2) 567 141 (43) 98
Total interest expense ..., 1,263 (59) 1,204 1,087 2 1,085
Net interest iNCOMe....cocoiviininine e $ 914 § 325 §$1,239 $ 922 $(119) $ 803

ANAGEMENT'S

The following table details changes in net interest income and net yield on average earning assels.

Years Ended December 31,

JISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS

1997 1596 1995
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rale  Balance interest Rate
Assets: {Dollars in Thousands)
{oans:
Real estate 10ans ............ee.. $161,156 $13,752 8.53% $134,775 $11,283 8.37% $107,842 $9,157 8.49%
Commercial loans ............... 764 71 9.29 1,080 105 9.72 1,062 112 10.55
Other 10ans.....oeeeceneene. 1,075 93 865 994 86 8.65 944 86 9.1
Total loans (1) (2) ......... 162,995 13,916 8.54 136,849 11,474 8.38 108,848 9,355 852
Investment securities (3) (4} ...... 36,537 2,197 601 37,218 2,195 5.90 42759 2473 578
Interest-bearing deposits .......... 5,414 292 539 5,564 293 5.27 4,232 246  5.81
Total eaming assets........... 204,946 16,405 8.00 179,631 13,962 7.77 156,839 12,074 7.70
Other assets ..o enne, 6,481 6,277 5,884
Total 858818 ..ovcveeeeeeeeens $211,427 $185,008 $162,723
Liabiiities and stockholders’ equity:
interest-bearing deposits: *
NOW accounts (5)....cccceeeee.. $ 13,173 169 128 § 12,980 184 142 § 10,581 157 148
Money market deposits....... 20,600 621  3.01 20,269 606 2.99 20,392 603 2.96
Regular. ... 31,257 783 251 31,282 783 2.50 30,956 775 250
Term certificates......ooeeee. . 83,257 4,690 563 71,183 4,063 5.70 55213 3,104 562
Total interest-bearing
deposits .................. 148,287 6,263 4.22 135,694 5,626 4.15 117,142 4,638 3.96
BOrrowings ... 32,212 1,897 5.89 22,557 1,330 5.80 20,181 1,232 6.0
Total interest-bearing
Habilities v.vvvcvecenrane e 180,499 8,160 4.52 158,251 6,956 4.40 137,323 5871 4.28
Demand deposits.......ccovvevvcnnne 9,291 7,854 6,572
Other liabilities .......ooocvveeiiceicennns 1,188 1,323 1,672
Stockholders’ equity.......c.oevvee 20,449 18,480 17,156
Total liabilities
and stockholders’ equity...... $211,427 $185,908 $162,723
Net interest income ............. $8,245 $ 7,006 $6,203
Weighted average rate spread .. 3.48% 3.37% 3.42%
Net yield on average earmning assets (6) 4.02% 3.90% 3.96%

(1) Grass of allowance for Joan losses.
(2) includes average non-accrual loans.

(3) Excludes the impact of the average unrealized gain (loss) on securities available for safe.

(4) includes Federal Home Loan Bank stock.

(5) Includes mortgagors’ escrow accounts,

(6) Net interest income divided by average total earning assets.

13
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interest income is derived from residential and com-
mercial morigages, home squity, installment and com-
mercial oans, and the investment portfolio. The Bank
earned an average vield of 8.0% on these assets in 1987,
as compared tc 7.77% in 1986 and 7.70% in 1995, For
1997, 1996 and 1995, interest income totaled $16.4 mil-
Hon, $14.0 million and $12.1 million, respectively.
Average total earning assets increased $25.3 million, or
14%, in 1997 over 1996 and $22.8 million, or 15%, in
1996 over 1895, The Bank achieved this growth by con-
tinuing to focus on real estate lending and decreasing its
emphasis on the investment portfolio.

Average deposit and borrowing balances increased in
1997 and 1996 as the Bank employed these sources to
fund its loan growth. As a result, interest expense, which
is incurred on certificates of deposit, NOW, savings and
money market deposit accounts, Federal Home Loan
Bank (“FHLB") advances and other borrowings, collec-
tively increased in these periods.

The average rate paid on interest-bearing deposit
accounts was 4.22% during 1997, as compared {0 4.15%
for 1996 and 3.96% for 1995 resulting primarily from a
continuing shift in the Bank’s deposit mix. Certificates of
deposit comprised 56% of average interest-bearing
deposits for 1997, at an average rate of 5.63%.
Comparably, certificates of deposit comprised 52% of
average interest-bearing deposits in 1896 and 47% in
1995 at an average rate of 5.70% and 5.62% in 1996 and
1995, respectively.

Interest expense on borrowings continued to rise dur-
ing 1997 resulting primarily from an increase in FHLB
advances. However, the average rate paid on borrowings
declined from 6.10% in 1995 and 5.90% in 19896 to 5.89%
in 1997 due to the downturn in market interest rates,
Also, during 1997, the Bank continued as a note option
depository for treasury, tax and loan deposits which
allowed it to borrow short-term funds at a preferred inter-
est rate.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is based on manage-
ment’s assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses. Management considers the size of the loan
portfolio, the risks associated with certain loan types, and
the underlying collateral values of individual loans as well
as other factors. During 1997, the Bank originated $56.0
million in residential, commercial, and personal loans

JISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

combined, increasing the ican porifolic to a total of $172.8
million at December 31, 1897. The provision for lcan
losses for 1997 was $174,000 as compared to $107,000
in 1996 and $120,000 in 1895. In 1998 recoveries of pre-
viously charged-off loans enabled the Bank to maintain an
adequate levei of allowance for loan losses while lowering
its annual provision.

Other Income

Other income is comprised of customer service fees,
net gaing or losses on sales of investments, and other
miscellaneous Rems. The most significant component of
ather income was fees earned on customer accounts with
$443,000 reported for 1997, $408,000 for 1996, and
$348,000 for 1985. These increases reflect a higher vol-
ume of transactions along with a modest rise in the fes
schedule. In 1995, the Bank reported $48,000 in net loss-
es on sales of securities classified as avallable for sale.
The securities were sarning below-market rates of interest
and were sold to obtain ficuidity to fund growth in the loan
portfolio.

Operating Expanses

There were $4.5 million in operating expenses in
1997 as compared to $4.1 million in 1996, and $3.6 mil-
fion in 1995. The rise in expenses in 1987 is primarily
atiributable to salary and empioyee benefit expenses and
a Bank-wide computer system upgrade and data center
conversion, which resulted in an increase in various oper-
ating expenses. The rise in expenses in 1996 is primarily
attributable to the addition of two branch offices which
opened in the fourth guarter of 1995. As a percentage of
average total assets, expenses declined steadily from
2.24% in 1995 t0 2.19% in 1986 10 2.11% In 1997.

Salaries and employee benefits were the largast com-
ponent of operating expenses at $2.5 million for 1997,
$2.3 million for 1998, and $1.8 million for 1995. In the
fourth guarter of 1895, the Bank hired eight employees 1o
staff the two new branches. This increased expense con-
tinued throughout 1996 and 19897. Annual merit-based
raises aiso contribuied to the increase in salary expenses.

Occupancy and equipment expenses increased over
the three periods. In 1997, the increase was primarily the
result of a Bank-wide computer system upgrade. The
Bank replaced approximately 50 outdated terminals with
stafe-of-the-art personal computers, instalied local-area
networks and a widg-area network, and upgraded its data

ANAGEMENT'S

communication lines. The result of these improvements
will be the ability to meet customer needs, enhance
administrative efficiency, and lower maintenance expenses.

Deposit insurance expense, comprised of federal and
state deposit insurance premiums, increased when com-
paring 1997 to 1996 and declined when comparing 1996
and 1995, In 1995, the Federal Depaosit insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) awarded the Bank its lowest premi-
um rate due to the Bank's improved financial condition
and then, effective June 1995 reduced this premium rate
by 85% to only $0.04 per hundred dollars of average
deposits. 1n 1996, the FDIC further reduced the annual
premium to $2,000 for well-capitalized banks. Effective
January 1, 1997, in accordance with the Deposit
Insurance Fund Act, the Financing Corporation (FICO)
debt service assessment became applicable to all insured
institutions. This resulted in an additional expense of
$17,000 in 1997 over 1996.

Other operating expenses including data processing,
legal, and other were $1.4 million combined for 1997 as
compared to $1.3 million in each of 1996 and 1995. Data
processing expenses rose in each of the three periods as
a result of an increase in the number of deposit accounts
and their associated transaction voiume.

income Taxes

in 1995, the Bank was able to utilize net operating
loss carryforwards to offset current taxable income and
recognize deferred tax assets. As a result, the Bank rec-
oghized a net provision for income taxes in the amount of
$1.0 million for 1995, at an effective tax rate of 35.4%.
There were no further tax benefits available in 1996, and
as a result, the Bank reporied a provision for income
taxes of $1.4 million at an effective tax rate of 40.7%. In
1997, the Bank employed strategies with respect to its
secutities portfolio which reduced its effective tax rate to
37.7%.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS 1997 AND 1996
BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS

The Bank had iotal assets of $222.6 million at
December 31, 1997, an increase of $21.0 million, or 10%,
from the $201.6 million level at year end 1996.

Loans

At December 31, 1897, the Bank reported net lcans
of $172.8 million, or 78% of total assets. Comparably at

ISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

December 31, 1998, net loans were $151.2 million, or
75% of total assets. This growth of $21.7 million, or 14%,
was achieved through the origination of nearly $56.0 mil-
lion in mortgage and other loan products. A stringent
underwriting policy continues to complement this lending
strategy. At December 31, 18997 and 1896, mortgage
loans accounted for more than 99% of gross loans with
commercial morigages representing approximately 49%
of the mortgage porifolio in 1997 and 44% in 1996.

The Bank’'s lending strategy during 1997 and 1996
has been to provide commercial property, residential, and
muitifamily foans at an initial fixed rate for three to five
years with a floating rate thereafter. Residential mort-
gages are generally underwritten to conform to Federal
National Mortgage Association or Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation guidelines. The Bank also offers
home equity loans tied o the prime lending rate.

The Bank’s loan porifolio is reported net of the
allowance for joan losses. At December 31, 1997 and
19986, the allowance had a balance of $1.6 miliion and
$1.4 million, respectively. The allowance is maintained at
a level to absorb possible losses. Loan losses are
charged against the allowance when the collectibility of
loan principal becomes unlikely. Becoveries are recorded
as additional reserves when received. There were
$13,000 in charge-offs and $6,000 in recoveries in 1997.
Comparably in 1996 there were $48,000 in charge-offs
and $57,000 in recoveries.

Non-accrual loans totaled $1.7 miilion, or 0.77% of
total assets, at December 31, 1897, as compared to $1.2
million, or 0.58% of total assets, at year end 1996, The
increase in non-accrual loans is primarily the result of two
mortgage borrowers, with whom the Bank is working to
resoive the delinquency. No significant write-offs related
to these mortgages are anticipated.

The following table presents information regarding the
Bank’s non-accrual loans:

At December 31, 1997 1996
{(in Thousands}

Residential Morigages ™ $1,200 $1,168
Commercial Mortgages 502 -
Commercial Loans 5 e
Instatiment L.oans 1 —

Total Non-accrual Loans $1,708 $1,168

(1) Includes home equity loans.
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ANAGEMENT’S

Investments

The purpose of the Bank’s investment portfolio is to sup-
plement the Bank's lending aclivities by generaling income
and providing liguidity through the receipt of principal and
interest payments. At December 31, 1297, the portfolio was
comprised of morigage-backed and agency issues for a iotal
of $35.4 million, or 16% of total assets, as compared to $32.3
millicn, or 16% of tolal assets, at year end 1996. All securi-
ties in the portfolic are issued or guaranteed by U.S.
Govemnment agencies or 1.5, Govemnment sponsored agen-
cies and, as such, carry a relatively low risk-weighting under
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDICY) risk-based
capital guidelines,

At December 31, 1897, $17.3 million, or 48% of the
Bank’s investment portfolio, was comprised of mortgage-
backed securites, a decline of $6.0 million from the $23.3 mil-
fion held at December 31, 1896. These securiies are subject
to declines in principal balances due to principal prepay-
ments. Prepayments tend 1o increase as market inferest
rates fall and the individual underlying mortgages are refi-
nanced at lower rates. Conversely, prepayments tend to
decrease as market interest rates nse. The decrease in the
amount of mortgage-backed securities held, offset by the
decline in interest rates in 1997, resulted in $4.5 mitlion in
principal prepayments received during 1997 as compared to
$6.1 million during 1996,

At year end 1997 and 19396, the entire investment portfo-
lio was classified as avallable for sale and was caried at falr
value with unrealized gains or losses reported as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. The unrealized loss on
the investment porifolio amounted to $50,000, net of tax
effects, at December 31, 1997 as compared to $244,000 at
year end 1998, reflecting an improvement in market condi-
tions. The fair value of securfties fluctuaies with the move-
ment of interest rates. Generally, during periods of decreas-
ing interest rates, the fair values increase whereas the oppo-
site may hold true during a nising interest rate environmeant.

Deposits

At December 31, 1897, the Bank held a total of $160.5
million in deposits, an increase of $10.5 miliion, or 7%, from
the $150.0 million in deposits at year end 1956, The Bank
offers a wide range of products, competitively priced, accom-
panied by guality service. During the fourth quarter of 1995
the Bank opened branch offices in the towns of Scituate and
Cohasset which have assisted in the growth of the deposit
base.

JISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Primary competition for deposits are other banks and
gredit unions in the Bank's market area and mutual funds.
The Bank's ability to aftract and retain deposits depends upon
satisfaction of depositors’ requirements with respect to rate,
liquicity, risk, and service. The Bank offers competitive rates,
conveniant branch locations, and the added convenience of
autormnated ieller machines, Deposits are insured in full
through the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and
Deposit insurance Fund of Massachuselts. This insurance,
combined with the Banlds strong capital position, provides an
advantage in aliaying custormner concerns regarding the safety
of deposils.

Core deposits, comprised of savings, NOW, and money
market acoounts were $73.8 million at December 31, 1997 as
compared to $71.3 millior at year end 1996, an increase of
$2.3 million. Certificates of deposit were $86.9 million, or
54% of total deposits, at Degember 31, 1997 as compared to
$78.7 million, or 52% of total deposits, at year end 1996, an
increase of $8.2 million. This continued growth in certificates
of deposit has resulied in increased deposit interest expense.

Borrowings

The Bank had $38.1 million in FHLB advances at
December 31, 1997, as compared to $29.8 million at year
end 1996. The Bank borrowed an additicnal $8.4 million in
1997 to fund growth In the lpan portfolio and to effectively
manage s interest rate sensitivity position. During 1896, the
Bank became a note oplion depository for treasury, tax and
loan deposits, which provides the Bank with an additional
source of short-term funding at a preferred interest rate. Al
December 31, 1997 and 1996, there were $319,000 and
$188,000, respectively, in such borrowings.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

The Bank's primary sources of liquidity are its available-
for-sale securities portfolio, principal and interest payments
on loans and investment securities, net increases in deposit
balances, and FHLB advances.

As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston,
the Bank is eligible 10 obtain both short and long-term credit
advances. The Bank can borrow up to approximately $62.8
million i meet its borrowing needs, based on the Bank’s
available qualified collateral which consists primarily of 1-4
family residential morigages. Upon specific approval from the
FHLB, the Bank may also pledge securities and other mori-
gages as collateral to secure as much as $51.7 million in
additional borrowings. At December 31, 1997, the Bank had

$38.1 million in advances with original maturities of up to
three years.

The Bank can also enter into repurchase agreement
transactions if the need for additional liquidity arises. At
December 31, 1697, the Bank had no repurchase agree-
menis outstanding.

At December 31, 1997, the Bank had capital of $21.4
million, or 9.60% of total assets, as compared to $19.2
million, or 9.53%, at December 31, 1996. Total capital is
adjusted by the unrealized gains or losses in the Bank’s
available-for-sale securities portfclio, and as such it is
subject to fluctuations resulting from changes in the mar-
ket values of its investment securities. At December 31,
1997 the Bank’s entire securities portfolio was classified
as available for sale, which had the efiect of reducing
capital by $50,000. [n comparison, at year end 1996 cap-
ital was reduced by $244,000.

Massachusetts-chartered savings banks that are
insured by the FDIC are subject to minimum capital main-
fenance requirements. Regulatory guidelines define the
minimum armount of qualifying capital an institution must
maintain as a percentage of risk-weighted assets (Risk-
Based Capital Ratios) and average total assets (Leverage
Ratio). The Bank’s ratios exceeded these regulatory cap-
ital requirements in both 1997 and 1896, as follows:

Minimum
Regulatory
December 31, 1997 1996 Ratios
Risk-Based Gapital Ratios:
Tier One Capital 14.60% 15.04% 4%
Tatal Capital 15.66 16.12 g
Leverage Ratio 9.80 9.80 3-5

These high capital levels were maintained despite a
more aggressive dividend policy. During 1997 the Bank
declared dividends of $0.59 per share, which included a
$0.13 per share special dividend which was declared in the
fourth gquarter. In comparison, in 1996, the Bank declared
dividends of $0.45 per share, which included a $0.10 per
share special dividend. The Bank’s dividend payout ratio,
which is calculated by dividing dividends per share into eam-
ings per share, increased to 28.9% for 1997 as compared 10
28.7% for 1996.

[ANAGEMENT S IDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IMPACT OF THE YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The Year 2000 Issue is the result of computer pro-
grams being written using two digits rather than four to
define the applicable year. Any of a bank’s computer pro-
grams that have date-sensitive software may recognize a
date using “00" as the year 1900 rather than the year
2000. This could result in a system failure or miscalcuia-
tions causing disruptions of operations, including, among
other things, a temporary inability to process transactions
or engage in normal business activities.

The Bank has assessed the potential impact of the
Year 2000 Issue on its key operational areas. Virually all
of the Bank’s deposit and loan data processing is sup-
plied by one vendor, who, thus far, has been adhering to
a schedule which anticipates Year 2000 readiness by
June 30, 1898. The Bank is also working with its other
vendors who provide software, hardware, and other date-
sensitive equipment to ensure that all systems will remain
operational in the Year 2000 and beyond. Also under
consideration are the Bank’s loan customers, whose
operations may be impacted by Year 2000 problems and
may subseguently impair their ability to meet their finan-
cial obligations to the Bank. [t is the Bank's belief that all
key systems are, or will be, Year 2000 compliant in
advance of the millennium, and anticipated expenditures
will not be material.

IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES

The consolidated financial statements and related
consolidated financial data presented herein have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles which generally require the measurement of
financial position and operating results in terms of histori-
cal dollars without considering the changes in the relative
purchasing power of money over time due to inflation.
The primary impact of inflation on operations of the Bank
is reflected in increased operating costs. Unlike most
industrial companies, virtually ali the assets and labilities
of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a
result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a
financial institution's performance than the effects of gen-
erai levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily
move in the same direction or to the same extent as the
price of goods and services,
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ASSETAJABILITY MANAGEMENT

The earnings of most banking institutions are exposed
to interest rate risk because their balance sheets, both
assets and liabilities, are predominantly interest bearing. 1t
is the Bank’s objective to minimize, to the degree prudently
possible, its exposure to interest rate risk, bearing in mind
that the Bank, by its very nature, will always be in the busi-
ness of taking on interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is moni-
tored on a quarterly basis by the Asset Liability Committee
of the Bank. The primary tool used by the Bank in manag-
ing interest rate risk is income simufation modeling. Income
simulation modeling measures changes in net interest
income by projecting the future composition of the Bank’s
batance sheet and applying different interest rate scenarios.
Management incorporates numerous assumptions into the
simulation model, such as prepayment speeds, balance
sheet growth and deposit elasticity. Rates are assumed to
rise, or decline, steadily over a twelve month period, then
remain constant over the remaining period.

Assuming an upward shift in the vield curve resulting in a
200 hasis point increase in short rates and an approximate
54 basis point increase in longer rates, management esti-
mates a .69% decrease in net interest income over a 24
month pericd. Conversely, management estimates a
1.63% increase in net interest income over a 24 month peri-

DDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

od assuming a downward shift in the yield curve resulting in
a 200 basis point decrease in shor rates and an approxi-
mate 74 basis point decrease in longer rates.

The Bani’s interest rate risk exposure is believed to be
managed and well within pre-defined limits.

To a significantly lesser degree, the Bank also utilizes GAP
analysis which involves comparing the difference betwaen
interest-rate sensitive assets and liabilities that mature or
reprice duting a given period of time. However, GAP analy-
sis does not measure the financial impact of mismatched
assets to liabilities, nor does it measure the velocity at which
assets and liabilities reprice.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report may contain statements relating to future
results of the Bank (including certain projections and busi-
ness trends) that are considered “forward-looking state-
ments” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995. Actual results may differ materially from those
projected as a result of certain risks and uncertainties,
including but not limited to changes in political and economic
conditions, interest rate fluctuations, competitive product and
pricing pressures within the Bank’s market, bond market
fluctuations, personal and corporate customers’ bankrupt-
cies, and inflation, as well as other risks and uncertainties.

The following table presents, as of December 31, 1997, interest-rate sensilive assets and liabilities categorized by expected maturily (or interest rate
adjustment date, if earlier) and weighted average rale. Expected maturities are contraciual maturifies adjusted for amortization and prepayment of
principal. Prepayment speeds range frorm 4% to 24% depending upon the particular assef category. Generally, adjustable rate loans are indexed
to Prime or Treasury rates and can reprice as much as 200 basis points per year and 600 basis points over the life of the loan. Non-certificate
deposits do not have contractual maturities. The table reflects management's assumptions about the repricing characteristics of such deposils,

Maturing or repricing within:

Interest-earning assets:
fnvestments, at cost ... $ 9663 $ 9,113

6.41% 6.45%

Loans:
Fixed rate ......cooveveveceienee, $23,013  $22,281
8.63% 8.41%
$ 46,542 $13,443

9.03% 8.31%

Adjustablerate...................

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Non-certificate accounts...... $20,359 $20,359
2.75% 2.75%
$63,632 $13,793
5.73% 6.01%
$33466 § 5000
5.84% 5.96%

Term cerdificates. .....coovveninn

Borrowings ...

One Year 1-2Years 2-3Years 3-4 Years 4-5Years Thereafter Total

(DoBars in Thousands}

$9187 $ 1,150 $ 656 § 5685 $35454

£.44% 6.82% 7.13% 6.52% 6.47%

$10,931  $ 6,989 $4,800 $24,595 $92,679

8.28% 8.03% 7.71% 7.64% 8.18%

$16,981 $ 2,716 $1,108 $ 1,051 $81,841

8.71% 8.61% 8.49% 8.48% 8.82%

$23973 § — $ — $ — §$64691
1.80% — — — 2.40%
$7,78t $1,262 $ 408 $ — $86876
6.67% 5.87% 6.21% — 5.87%
- % — $ — $ — $38466
- - — — 5.85%

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Hingham Institution for Savings

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Hingham Institution for Savings and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders'
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1997. These consoli-
dated financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materiai respects,
the financial position of Hingham Institution for Savings and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1897 and 1996,
and the resulis of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year petiod ended
December 31, 1997 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Boston, Massachusetis
January 23, 1998
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(CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
ASSETS
Years Ended December 31,
g ember 3%, 1897 1996 1895
o s {Ir Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
{in Thousands) L. .
Interest and dividend income: :
Cash and due from banks {NOE 2) i e e s e b $ 3804 $ 3,323 ' 0T 12 1= SRR PSR UROTUUON $13,916 $11,474 $ 9,355
INeres-DearNG QePOSHS ..o i s ears s 3,464 8,317 ' INVESTIMENT SECUINIES 11 viriirirer ettt s eaeee et ereaereaeaaseaesrenarssannnrnns 2,197 2,195 2,473
Cash and CASH SQUIVAIBNES ... eeeeeeeeeeeees st s ese s ee e ees e eeeeeeeeee s 7,268 T 11,640 Interest-bearing depostS ... e 292 293 246
Total interest and dividend INCOME ..o e 16,405 13,862 12,074
Securities avaitable for sale (NOIE 3) ..o oo 35,369 32,321 interest expense:

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses Deposits (INOIE B) ..o 6,263 5,626 4,639
of $1,560,000 in 1997 and $1,393,000 in 1996 (Notes 4 and 7)....ccccovivvivricni s 172,839 151,166 BOMOWEA FUMTS c1oiiiieiei e senes s vrve s e s e e e eeeseeeeeereeses e vsasranane 1,897 1,330 1,232
Banking premises and equipment, Nt (NOE 5) ...........ccccioweriisioricccnensssosscmeenss oo 2,633 2,418 Tl IMEIESE EXDBNSE vevvrreereesererereeesessseacrereeseressseesoressesssecsoees 8,160 6,956 5,871
ACCIUBH INTBTESE FECBIVADIE ....oeoeee oottt et e e e e e e e e eer e e e et en et ees v eatens 1,243 1,060 : - T
Detferred income tax asset, net (NoIe 8) oo i 994 1,106 N ITHEIEEE INCOMIE oo 8,245 7,008 6,203
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, al COSt{NOIE 7) .o 1,200 1,450 Provision fOr 10an [0SSES (NOE 4)......ovveirriveesiseeeseeesesessssessensenssseessnsenes 174 107 120

BT BB ettt vttt et e e e e e e e e et raeer e r e e e vt e s enanens 338 425 Net interest income, after provision '
LS;_%%%_?_%& §2_0_L5§§ ' FOF OB OBSEE o iiiiieres e crece et sen st v e s ereceeasaanessnenr st ssnarrn s rans 8,071 6,899 6,083

QOther income:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Customer service fees on depositS ... s s 443 4089 346
DEPOSIES (NOLE B) .vvvovvooeeer oo $160,506 $150,015 (OLL T R e 210 205 163
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (NOE 7) .....c..ciis e eeeeienee e eesr e eereas 38,147 29,754 i Total Other INCOME ..o _..653 __614 509
Other borrowed fUNAS. ... e eb e e 319 188 Operating expenses:
MOrtgagors’ @SCIOW ACTOUNES ... e nr e e e a e s sr s et erar e srsu e sessans 451 292 Salaries and employee benefits (Note 12) ... 2.467 2,268 1,838
Accrued Interest payable ... 205 582 . Data ProCesSiNg ..ovu et e s 339 331 298
Other abiliies (NOTE 12) ettt re et a e ene s 1,579 1,543 Occupancy and equipment (NOE 5] ..o, 539 485 372
TOA! HADIIHES .. cvo ettt r s rae et e s eeeeeneneseneseseemeearaereos 201,207 182,374 LG o 29 10 66
. . . DepOSIT INSUIBNCE ..viiri e ais s e e st e eb s 22 4 159
Commitrments and contingencies (Note 9) L3 1= U O OO U R 1,062 968 208
Stockholders' equity (Notes 10 and 11): Total operating eXPeNSES .....cvvv e e 4,458 4,066 3,641
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 2,500,000
shares authorized; NONB ISSUBT ..o e e — — INCOME bEfOre INCOME tAXES . o cr ettt ey 4,266 3,447 2,951
Commoen stock, $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares Income tax provision (NOte 8)......c.vvri i 1,607 1,403 1,045
authorized, 1,303,500 and 1,297,500 shares NBEINCOIME 1oevoeveeeeee et eesecas s sesneesene s esssss s ans st s s resens s $ 2,659 $ 2,044 $ 1,906
issued and outstanding in 1997 and 18986, respectively ... iiiioiiov e 1,304 1,298 T
Additional paid-in CapItal ... e 8,693 8,616 . . 4
UNGIVIBEA PIOFLS ....orsrveo oo soeees e csees oo s eeereesereneseeer e 11,430 9,542 Weighted average sNares OUtSIANMING ..........vceios v 1302 1298 129
T 21407 19,456 Weighted average shares outstanding
Net unrealized loss on securities ) - assuming dilution for stock OptoNS ... 1,331 1,311 1,302
available for sale, after tax effect (Notes 3and 8) oo, (50) {244) '
e — e INGS PO BNAIE ..cveeivsversiverrerieseeriere e et sieabe s eaesrase s seenressenanes s eraane . . 1.47
TOtAl SIOCKNOIABIS' EGUIY ...rvvvrrseceroeereeeesessmeseesssnens s sessersesecserseenee 21,377 19,212 e $.2.04 1./
$222 584 $201,586 Earnings per share - assuming dilution for stock options ... $ 2.00 $ 1.56 $ 146

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

Comman
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Balance at December 31, 1894 ........... $1.293
NEtINCOMEB .o e —
Change in net unrealized loss on

seclrities available for sale, after

tax effect....oiviiiiii —

Stock options exercised, after
faxeffect ..o 2

Cash dividends declared ($.35 per share) —

$ 8,584

13

Balance at December 31, 1895 ........... 1,295
N [= 0 g To o 4T = P —
Change in net unrealized loss on

securities available for sale, after

fax effect ... -

Stock options exercised, after
faxeffect. ..o, 3

Cash dividends declared ($.45 per share) —

8,597

19

Balance at December 31, 1896 ........... 1,298
Net income ..o -
Change in net unrealized loss on

securities available for sale, after

tax effact ... eeveiee s —

Stock options exercised, after
tax effect ..o 6

Cash dividends declared ($.59 per share) e

8,616

77

Balance at December 31, 1997 ........... $ 1,304

$ 8,693

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF (CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQuiTy

Net
Unrealized Loss Total
Undivided on Securities Stockholders’
Profits Available for Sale Equity
{in Thousands)
$ 6,629 $ (525) $15,081
1,906 — 1,906
— 370 370
—_ —_ 15
(453) e (453)
8,082 (155) 17,819
2,044 —_ 2,044
— (89) (89)
—_ — 22
(584) — (584)
9,542 (244) 19,212
2,659 e 2,659
— 194 194
e e 83
(771) = (771)
%$11,430 $ (50) $21,377

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

Cash flows from operating activities:

(L g oo = SO
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan 108888 ...,

Provision for losses on foreclosed and other real estate ...,

Amortization of premium on investment

securities, net of aceretion ...........covvveiiiininnn
Amortization of deferred loan origination fees, net
Deprecialion ...
Loss on sale of securities available for sale, net
Gain on sale of foreclosed and other real estate

Years Ended December 31,
1897 1996 1995

(In Thousands)

Deferred tax (benefit) provision ..o,
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accrued interest receivable

Other assels

Accrued interest payable and other liabHities.....c.cooo e,
Net cash provided by operating activities ...

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of securities available forsale ..o
Purchase of securities available fOr Sal8 .........ccovcrirciri e
Purchase of securities held to maturity ...
Proceeds from maturities of securities available forsale ..o
Proceeds from maturities of securities held to maturity.........ccccooininn s
Principal payments received on mortgage-backed securities ...
Loans originated, net of payments recaived............ne.
Additions to foreclosed and other real estate, net of payments .....................
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed and other real estate........ccocvcevriiceeens
Increase in Federal Home Loan Bank stock ..o ccececincrccn e,
Additions to banking premises and equipment.............ooov i,

Net cash used in investing activities ...

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$1,906

$2,659 $2,044

174 107 120

_ —_ 20

151 242 288
(52) (73) (62)

248 195 133

e — 49

— (31) (4)

(20) (16} 249
(183) 12} (213)
87 (49) 17

{402) (164) 843

2,662 2,243 3,312

— — 1,463
{10,996) (3,991) (4,882)
e — (2,183)

3,576 4,324 4,000

— e 2,000

4,547 6,122 3,676
{21,795) (31,694) (18,832)
— — (110)

_— 31 279
(450) {250) (206)
(463) (117 (930)
(25,581) (25,575) {15,725)
{continued)
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{CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(Concluded)

Cash flows from financing activities:
INcrease N deposits, N8 . e
Increase in mergagors’ @SCrowW ACCOUNES ... e eee e sae e
Proceeds from stock oplions exerciSed ... e
Cash dividends paid on common StOCK. ..o,
Proceeds (repayments) from borrowings with maturities
of less than three months ..o v,
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances with maturities of
EN1re. MONTNS OF MOTE L.oviiiiiii et eeeeee e e e s
Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances with maturities of
three Months O MOFE ... e e

Net cash provided by financing activities................ocoe e

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ceeeee e,

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Year...............occoc oo

Cash and cash equivalents at end Of Year ...,
Supplementary information:

interest paid on deposit ACCOUNTS ..ot

Interest paid on borrowed funds......... e e n e a et abra e esnneeea

HICOME TAXES PBIH 1 it vt ee ettt r e r e e e e e e e e e e s eeete e e e eeaaees
Financed sales of foreclosed real @state.... v,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Yea_fs _Ended December 31,

1987

1996

{In Theusands)

$16,973
5
11

(545)

3,442

24,000

{19,500)

24,386
1,054
10,586

$11,640

$ 5,579
1,300
1,734

34

1995

$16,358
35
8

(310)

50,500

(47,500)

18,091

6,678

3,008

$10,58

$ 4,499
1,225
72

171

129
26,301

F

B

NoT1Es TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation and consolidation ,

The consofidated financial statements include the accounts of Hingham Institution for Savings ("Bank®) and its wholly
owned subsidiaries, Hingham Securities Corporation and Hingham Motel Corporation. Hingham Securities Corporation
holds title to securities availabie for sale and Hingham Motel Corporation is presently inactive. Alf intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of the Bank conform to
generally accepted accounting principles and prevailing practices within the banking industry.

Use of estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management is required
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consoli-
dated balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could dif-
fer from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate
to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation reserve against deferred tax assets.

Business

The Bank provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses through its five offices in south-
eastern Massachusetts. Its primary deposit products are savings, checking and term ceriificate accounts, and its primary
lending products are residential and commercial mortgage loans.

Reclassification \
Certain amounts have been reclassified in the 1996 and 1995 consolidated financial statements 1o conform to the

1997 preseniation.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts due from banks and interest-bearing deposits.

Interest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits mature within ninety days and are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Securities Available for Sale
Investments are classified as available for sale and reflected at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, after tax
effect, excluded from earnings and reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston stock is reflected at cost,

Purchased premiums and discounts are amortized to earnings by a method which approximates the interest method
over the terms of the investments. Declines in the value of investments that are deemed to be other than temporary are
reflected in earnings when identified. Gains and losses on disposition of investments are computed by the specific identi-
fication method.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans

The Bank grants morigage, commercial and consumer loans to customers. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is
represented by mortgage loans in the southeastern Massachusetts area. The ability of the Bank's debtors to honor their
coniracts is dependent upon the real estate, construction and general economic sectors,

Loans, as reported, have been reduced by unadvanced loan funds, net deferred interest and loan origination fees and
the ailowance for loan losses.

Interest on loans is recognized on a simpie interest basis and is not accrued on loans which are ninety days or more
past due or for which collection is not assured. Interest income previously accrued on such joans is reversed against cur-
rent period interest income. Interest income on all non-accrual loans is recognized only to the extent of interest payments
received.

Net deferred interest and loan origination fees are amortized as an adjustment of the related loan vields using the
level-interest method.

Allowance for loan losses
The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan iosses charged to earnings and is main-
tained at a level considered adequate to provide for reascnably foreseeabls loan losses.

The provision and the level of the allowance are evaluated on a regular basis by management and are based upon
management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in fight of historical experience, known and inherent risks in
the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated
value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it
requires estimates that are susceptible to significant change. Uttimately losses may vary from current estimates, and
future additions to the allowance may be necessary.

Loan fosses are charged against the allowance when management believes the collectibility of the loan balance is
uniikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that a creditor will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and
the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. L.oans that experience insignificant pay-
ment delays and payment shortfalis generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of
payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration ali of the circumstances sur-
rounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior pay-
ment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a
loan-by-loan basis by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest
rate, the loan’s obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the ioan is collateral dependent. Substantially
alt of the Bank’s loans which are identified as impaired are measured by the fair value of existing collateral.

Large groups of smalier balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Bank
does not separately identify individual consumer loans for impairment disclosures.

NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Banking premises and equipment

tand is carried at cost. Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation computed on the
straight-fine method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. It is general practice to charge the cost of mainienance
and repairs to samings when incurred; major expenditures for betterments are capitalized and depreciated.

income taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which
the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted accordingly through the provision for income taxes. The Bank's base
amount of its federal income tax reserve for loan losses is a permanent difference for which there Is no recognition of a
deferred tax liability. However, the ioan Joss allowance maintained for financial reporting purposes is a temporary differ-
ence with allowable recognition of a related deferred tax asset, if it is deemed realizable. The Bank and its subsidiaries file
state and consoiidated federal income tax returns based on an October 31 year end.

Retirement plan
The compensation cost of an employee’s pension benefit is recognized on the net periodic pension cost method over

the employee's approximate service period. The aggregate cost method is utilized for funding purposes.

Siock Compensation Plans
In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No.123, “Accounting for

Stock-Based Compensafion,” issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board {“FASB"), the Bank has elected to con-
finue to measure compensation cost for those plans using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by
APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Compensation cost is the excess, if any, of the quoted
rarket price of the stock at the grant date (or other measurement date) over the amount an employee must pay to acquire
the stock. Stock options issued under the Bank's stock option plans have no intrinsic value at the grant date, and under
Opinion No. 25 no compensation cost is recognized for them. The Bank has elected to continue with the accounting
methodology in Opinion No. 25 and, as a result, must make pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share
and other disclosures, as if the fair value based method of accounting had been applied. The pro forma disclosures
required by SFAS No.123 include the sffects of all awards granted on or after January 1, 1995. {See Note 11.)

Earnings per share

in February 1997, FASB issued SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” which requires that earnings per share be cal-
culated on a basic and a dilutive basis. Basic earnings per share represents income available to common stockholders
divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share
reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued,
as well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed conversion. Potential common shares that may
be issued by the Bank relate solely to cutstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury stock method.
The assumed conversion of outstanding dilutive stock options would increase the shares outstanding but would not
require an adjustment to income as a result of the conversion. The Statement is effective for interim and annual periods
ending after December 15, 1997, and requires the restatement of all prior-period earnings per share data presented.
Accordingly, the Bank has restated all earnings per share data presented herein.

For the year ended December 31, 1995, options applicable to 28,000 shares were anti-dilutive and excluded from the
dituted earnings per share computations. There were no such anti-dilutive shares for the years ended December 31,

1997 and 1986.
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NoOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In June 1997, FASB issued SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 1997. Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses
be included in net incorme. Certain FASB statements, however, require entities to report specific changes in assets and
liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, as a separate component of the equity sec-
tion of the balance sheet. Such items, along with net income, are components of comprehensive income. SFAS No.130
requires that all items of comprehensive income be reported in a financial statement that is displayed with the same
prominence as other financial statements. Additionally, SFAS No. 130 requires that the accumulated balance of other
comprehensive income be displayed separately from retained earnings and additional paid-in capital in the equity section
of the balance sheet. The Bank will adopt these disclosure requirements beginning in the first quarter of 1998.

2. CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain cash reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank based upon a percentage of
certain deposits. At December 31, 1997 and 1996, cash and due from banks included $531,000 and $228,000, respec-
fively, to satisfy such reserve requirements.

OTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available for sale, with gross unrealized gains and losses, fol-
lows:

December 31, 1997

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Lasses _Value
{in Thousands)
U.S. Government and federal
agency ObHGAIONS .....vcvvirei e s e eens - $18,001 $ 83 $ (12) $ 18,072
Mortgage-backed - FHLMOC ... 7,656 22 {57) 7,621
Mortgage-backed - FNMA .......ococcoerireieiecenseseeeenseieseesneens 7.897 12 (82) 7,827
BEMIC'S « FNMA ..ottt imerrer s snrr s s snrsbr e s 1,900 — (681 1,849
Total securities available forsale.........ociee $ 35,454 $117 $ (202) $ 35,369
December 31, 1996
Gross Gross
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains 105588 Value
(In Thousands)
U.8. Government and federal

AGENCY ODHGANONS ...vucvvviereceereeeereeeesceresareessssesssensrsssanaes $ 9,030 $ 11 $  (62) $ 8,979
Mortgage-backed - FHLMC ... 12,134 26 (165) 11,995
Mortgage-backed - FNMA ... e 9,669 18 {154} 9,533
BEMIC'S « FNMA ..ot vvirsvsseivieesemssness s esneses ceaeessganees 1,899 — (85) 1,814
Total securities available forsale............oceciiciienn, $32,732 $ 55 $ (466) $ 32,321

At December 31, 1897, the Bank has pledged U.S. Government obligations with an amortized cost of $1,000,000 and
a fair value of $998,000 as collateral against its treasury, tax and loan account.
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SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (concluded) N 4, LOANS
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 1997 are A summary of the balances of foans follows: December 31
shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because of prepayments and scheduled pay- . 1997 , 1066

ments on mortgage-backed securities. Further, certain obligors have the right to call bonds and obligations without pre-

payment penalties. {In Theusands)

Morlgage loans:

Amaortized Fair 2T T Lo L= 1] (= LPUOTP U USRS U RO PRI $ 76,414 $ 71,408
Cost Value COMIMBITIAL ..ot iire et ectreesree e e s e n e v et sn s s s e one s e et b b a st 84,362 67,008
{In Theusands) (0701013153 1w: (1o L1 IDTAUUT SO PPV PO UUPUPPPIPRT 8,071 9,252
Bonds and obligations: EQUILY lINS OF OTETIt 1-vv-veeeveeeveerseeseemssereossesesmseesmseeee oo seeeeeeeeee e besenss e 7,108 7,842
" SECONG MOMGADES -oveevieere e ere et e reas s sems s n e aeerrras s e s eaae s e s e s s rene e s nenesnens 570 167
VNI T AT e ettt e e e e $ 4,005 $ 4,004 176,525 155,678
OVer 1Yearto 5 YBArs ...tk 12,996 13,070 Less UNadvanced 108N FUNDS ... e ee e s sna s nneeein (3,214) (3,831)
OVEI 5 YBAMS 10 10 YOAIS oot 1,000 998 TOtal MOMGAGE I0ANS, B ..rrrevrrersreereerereerenes e eeesseeesessese oo 173,311 151,847

18,001 _18072 Other loans:
Mortgage-backed securities: Personal inStallment ..o e er e s e e 885 819
929 COMIMEBITIAL 11t iorrer et ie e s ea s e e e e et et e et aae e s esea e e anan e e e e emnnneera s aaesanas 247 48
VTN T Y BT 1t ittt e r et ee et n e 1331 1,323 Educat}on ........ T 10 “E;
OVEI 1 YEAI 0 5 YBATS ..ueueereeusevessareseeeeeenretsemsscoseceseeseeeeeeaessseses e sese e ens e 7,458 7,416 REVOIVING CIETIL......ovocvvcsirivrsrm sttt e ST 5
OVEr 5 YBAS 10 10 YRS .....oveeeveee e veesseseeeeeee et eee st eses e s es st e eeeee oo 709 708 TOtAI OHNOI 08NS 11vvev i __ 1,20 938
OVEI 10 YBAFS wovreit s __7.955 7,850 TOAI HOBNS +vvvvveeesveerseeseesreeesrerseeseeeoeseessssoeee e oeees s e sresssssrss s 174,520 152,785

17,453 17,297

Total debt ” T ) Less: AOWANCE {0 I08N J0SSES .1 v iivreecieer e eeeecrcraerssirreeessair s e s s ear e s eaannreeen s e {1,560) {1,393)
O1@1 GEDL SBOUMHES --occvvvvnen sttt $ 35,454 $ 35,369 Net deferred interest and loan Grigination JEES ............owrroorerorsoes (121) (226)
LOBNS, ML vt eoe oot ee et es et e et e e eem e s e seesaes s eases s em s eaesreaneenvn s aneenenenn e earas $172,839 $151,166

For the year ended December 31, 1995, proceeds from the sale of securities available for sale amounted to

$1,463,000 resulting in gross reatized losses of $49,000. There were no sales of securities during 1997 or 1996. The Bank has sold mortgage fcans in the secondary mortgage market and has retained the servicing responsibili-

ty and receives fees for the services provided. Loans sold and serviced for others amounted to $5,615,000,
$6,667,000 and $8,787.000 at December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively. All loans serviced for others were
sold without recourse provisions and are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
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LOANS (concluded)

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses follows:

lOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended December 31,

1997

Balance at beginning of Year...........cccciv v $1,393
Provision for 0an 10SS8S .....c.vceciveiececteeeee et 174

1,567
Loans charged-0ff ... ....cooeireee e v (13
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off .......oooooeeveecveveceeee 8
Balance at end of YEar ...t $1,560

The following is a summary of information pertaining to impaired and non-accrual foans:

|

1996 1995
(in Theusands)
$1,277 $1,338
107 120
1,384 1,458
(48) (188)
57 7
$1,393 $1,277
Cecember 31,
1997 1996
{In Theusands)
....... $ 189 $1,075
....... 639 93
....... $ 828 $1,168
....... L___?i $ 46
....... $1,708 $1,168

Years Ended December 31,

Impaired loans without a valuation alloWanCe............ccoevvveeeeeecrer oo e eee o
Impaired loans with a valuation allOWANCE ..........ccceveeeveiceiceeee oo e e e
Total IMPAIFEH J0ANS ...ttt ettt e es s et e e e e et ee e e s ene s nsans
Valuation allowance allocated to impaired 10ans .............ccovoioeeceee e
NON-ACCTUANHOBNS ...ttt e et eese et e e s e et s ee e e
1997
Average investment in impaired 10anS ..o $754
Interest income recognized on impaired [0aNS.......c.ccooveeeceeeveer e $103
Interest income recognized on a cash '
basis on iMpaired I0aNS .........ccoviiiiiir e $103

1996

(in Thousands)
$992

5

|

&
W

&
w

5

|

At December 31,1997 there is $82,000 committed to be advanced in connection with impaired loans.

1995

$556
$ 4

41
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5. BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of banking premises and equipment and their estimated useful
lives follows:

Decembear 31, Estimated Useful
1947 1885 Lives
{in Thousands)
Banking premises:
-T2 T BT U UOTUUUPITO $ 548 $ 548
BUIlHINGS +co v vreivrirrerriereresrenrereesbessman s srnserursese e e st et 2,217 2,155 3 - 40 years
e 1] 11 1= 01 O OO OSSR 1,694 1,293 3 - 25 years
4,459 3,996
Less accumulated depreciation ... {1,826) {1,578)
$2,633 $2,418

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 amounted to $248,000, $195,000
and $133,000, respectively.

6. DEPOSITS

A summary of deposit balances, by type, is as follows:

December 31,
1997 1996
T {In Thousands)
Non-cerijficate accounts:

REGUIBE v rne ottt sr s ear s s b s era gtk $ 31,285 $ 30,989
Money market dePOSHS. ..o 20,070 20,901
AL 01T OO USSR 13,336 12,589
T2 £y 1= oo I U OISO RN 8,939 6,732
Total NoN-CertifiCale A0COLIIS . ..o vt eeie st erreerrrara s v s an e eareeereees 73,630 71,31
Term certificates less than $100,000 ... a e e erenene 64,065 59,126
Term certificates $100,000 OF MOME ..o e eecerrr e ee s e smbanrt i aveee s e 22,811 16,588
Total certifiCate ACCOUNMES. ... i crer ettt s 86,876 78,714
TOtAl AEPOSIES ...ceeiiiceesir e re s iR $160,506 $150,015
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NoOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSITS (concluded)

The maturity distribution of term certificates is as follows: December 31,
1947 1996
Weightad Weighted
Amount  Average Rate  Amounit  Average Rale

{Dollars in Thousands)

WININ T YBaT et $63,632 5.73% $60,233 5.47%
Over 1 yearto 2 YEars. ..o seeeeeen s 13,793 6.01 7.320 5.92
Over2yearst0 3 YearS ..o, 7,781 6.67 4,581 570
Over3yearsto S yearS.....cooeee. e r e ea e 1,§z9 5.96 6,580 6.51
386,876 5.87% §78,71 5.61%

A summary of interest expense on deposits is as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

1997 1996 1995
{in Thousands)
REGUIAE ..ot $ 783 $ 783 $ 775
Money market deposits.........ooiieniiceect e 621 606 603
NOW . et a e e r e r e et area e 169 184 157
Term CEMIIICALES ... vttt e e ae e e e e eenen e 4,690 4,053 3,104
$6,263 $5,626 $4,639
7. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES
A summary of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston follows:
December 31,
1997 1936
Maturing During
the Year Ending Weighted Weighted
December 31, Amount  Average Raie  Amount  Average Raie
' {Doilars in Thousands) '
997 o e § ey $22,754 5.76%
1998 e 33,147 5.84 7,000 5.82
1999 L 5,000 5.96 e —
$38,147 5.86% $29,754 5.78%

All barrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston are secured by stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Boston and a bianket lien on “qualified collateral” defined principally as 75% of the carrying value of first mortgage loans
on owner-occupied residential property.

The Bank also has an available line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston at an interest rate that
adjusts daily. Borrowings under this line are limited to $4,031,000 at December 31, 1997.

NoT1es TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. INCOME TAXES

Allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and deferred portions is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1997 1996 1833
{in Thousands)
Current tax provision:
FROBIAL ...ttt irtiieecvs st seee s ia s eesassbbaensseeasarnsveasess b aae s b s bneans s cneesecanas $1,343 $1,094 $ 868
3 (= 1= PP SRRSO U 284 325 310
Utilization of operating loss carryforwards ..o — — (382)
1,627 1,419 796
Deferred tax provision (benefit):
e oo | U OO TSP U O (17} {5) 397
L £z 1 (= SO RPN URRR PO (3) (11) 41
(20) (16) 438
Change in valuation reserve realization assumplions .........cceciniinennn — o (189)
$1,607 $1,403 $1,045

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rates are
summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1997 1998 1985
SEAIULONY T Lo et e s e et 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit. ... 4.3 6.0 7.8
Change in valuation allowance ........c.cooiin — — (6.4
OHNEE, NBL . v e e aa e et {(.6) 7 e
EHOCtive taX TAI8S .ovvvi e e e 37.7% 40.7% 35.4%
35
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NOTES TO (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAXES (continued)

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows:

E3

December 31,

1997

1986

{in Thousands)

Deferred tax asset:

FBOBIA] ettt e e e e e et e et ertnanta e et e e s neeeenneeeaneeans 5 834 $ 897
BB ettt e et e e et ee et e e e e — e e eeareee s e ettt ear e aetreenanes 358 385
_ 1,192 1,292
Valuation reserve 0N AsSEL.........oooiiiirric e {55} (57)
1,137 1,235
Deferred tax liability:
FRABEAI ..ttt cr et v et et ee e e e e e e et et eeessevaaseseneeeeneeseeneeeeereaae (111) (101
1 = (T TR YRR UUT U UTOUTI (32) {28)
(143) {129)
NEt eferred 1aX 8B ... ettt eeee e s s e e vrereess e e seseeeressaereeseseesoas $ 994 $1,106
The tax effects of each type of income and expense item that give rise to deferred taxes are as follows:
December 31, ]
i
1597 1986
{in Thousands)
AHOWANEE TOT FOBN J0SSES ittt e et n et e e v s areasessareesnsnnassserrnean $ 610 $ 524
EmMployee Benefifs ...ttt et s 239 223
Other QCCTUEH BXPEMSES ....cciiii et crrsre e see e et e st ettt et eeeem e e ees e eeaeaeeenans 193 218
Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale ... ivveecc e 35 167
ONBE et s s _(28) 31
_ 1,049 1,163
VARIALION FEBEIVE ...ttt i e e s s e e s see st s e bb e e e see e {55) {57)
Net deferred TaX ASSEL....covv ettt er et e e aree e v e esrare e s ramesannes $ 904 $1,106

A summatry of the change in the net deferred tax asset is as follows:

Years Endad December 31,

1997 1996 1495
(In Thousands})
Batance at beginning Of YBaI ..o et $1,106 $1,045 $1,557
Deferred tax benefit (DrovISION)......ccc e i 20 16 (249)
Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale ..o (132) 45 (263)
Balance at end of YEAI ..o s $ 994  $1.106 $1,045

sy
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INCOME TAXES (concluded)
A summary of the change in the valuation reserve applicable to the net deferred tax asset is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1907 1996 1995
' {In Thousands}
Balance at beginning Of YBar ... e $ 57 % 865 § 254
Benefits @XPINEU ...oiiiee i et i e e e e (2 {8) e
Change in assumptions due to anticipation
OF FUIUTE INCOMIB. ..o ctieieeie e ceeeei e cresrr e rtesa e s es e e e aree e e s st s fanen s s snne s s emeemesnre e s eannseas — — (189)
Balance at @nd Of YA ..o e e s $ 55 §$ 57 $ 65

Tax reserve for loan losses

The federal income tax reserve for loan losses at the Bank's base year was $3,780,000. If any portion of the reserve
is used for purposes other than to absorb loan losses, approximately 150% of the amount actually used, limited to the
amount of the reserve, will be subject to taxation in the fiscal year in which used. As the Bank intends to use the reserve
only to absorb loan losses, a deferred tax liability of approximately $1,550,000 has not been provided. (See Note 1)

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, there are outstanding commitments and contingencies which are not reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Loan commitments

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include unused lines of credit, commitments to originate
loans, and standby letters of credit. The instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk
in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to its financial instruments is
represented by the contractual amount of these commitments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commit-
ments and conditional obligations as it does for on-batance-sheet instruments.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (concluded)

At December 31, 1997 and 1996, the following financial instruments were outstanding with contract amounts repre-
senting credit risk:

___Contract Amount
1987 1946
{in Thousands)
Unused ines of Cradit ... ettt n s $8.483 $7,782
Commitments to originate loans:
Commercial MOMGAGES ... ettt ettt eae e 6,583 5,830
Residential MOMGAGES. ...t e s e en e 3,695 3,149
Standby letters of Credit .. 30 a0

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer provided there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on
a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is
based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower. The commitments to originate loans and the majority of unused
lines of credit are secured by real estate.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers.

Employment agreemenis

The Bank has entered into employment agreements with certain senior executives. The original terms of the agree-
ments are for three or two years and automatically extend unless either party gives notice to the contrary. The agree-
ments generally provide for certain {ump sum severance payments under certain circumstances, within a one-year period
following a “change in control,” as defined in the agreements.

Other contingencies

Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business, which, in the opinion of management,
will have no material effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial position.

16. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Minimum regulatory capital requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure
to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by reg-
ulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of its assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regutators
about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

NoOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (concluded)

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minfmum
amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average gssets (as def:r-led)-.
Management believes, as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it

is subject.

As of December 31,1997 and 19986, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation cate-
gorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. T.O be categorizgd as
well capitalized, it must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the
following table. There are no conditions or events since the notification that management believes have changed th‘e
Bank’s category. The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 are also presented in

the table.

Minimum
To Be Well
Minimum Capitalized Under
Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Requirement Aclion Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

{Dollars in Theusands)
December 31,1997

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets..... $22,987 15.66%  $11,741 8.0% $14,676  10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets.... 21,427 14.60 5,870 4.0 8,806 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets ............. 21,427 9.80 655910 30to 10,932 5.0
10,932 5.0

December 31,1995

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets..... $20,849 16.12%  $10,347 8.0% $12,934 10.0%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets ... 19,456 15.04 5173 4.0 7,760 6.0
Tier 1 Capital to Average Assets ............. 19,456 9.90 5,894 to S.g o 9,824 5.0

9,824 5.

Liguidation account

At the time of conversion from mutual to stock form, the Bank established a liquidation account for the benefit of eligi-
ble account holders. The fiquidation account is reduced annually to the extent that eligible account hoiders reducg th'eir
qualifying deposit. In the event of a complete liquidation, eligible account holders will be entitled to receive a distribution
from the liquidation account o the extent that funds are available. According to the Bank's transfer agent, the balance of
the liquidation account at December 31, 1997 amounted to $731,000 (unaudited).
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MNOTES 7O {CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. STOCK OPTION PLANS

At December 31,1997, the Bank has two fixed stock option plans as described below. The Bank applies APB Opinion
25 and related Interpretations in accounting for the plans. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for the
plans. Had compensation cost for the plans been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under
the plans consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the
Bank’s net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Years Ended December 31,

1897 1996 1985

Net income: {in Theusands, excepi per share amounts)

AAS TEPOME ittt et n e e ne e rr s e e sina e $2.659 $2,044 $1,908

ol o]y 1= OSSO U RSN 2,651 1,966 1,827
Earnings per share:

BB TEPOTIOU Lottt e ettt $ 204 $ 157 $ 1.47

e (O (o4 - O OO PTORTORRR 2.04 1.51 1.41
Earnings per share-assuming dilution for stock options:

AS TEROIEU . e $ 2.00 $ 1.56 $ 148

e ol (o] 2 1 T O SO OT RO R ORI 1.99 1.50 1.40

Under the Bank's 1988 and 1896 stock option plans, options may be granted to officers, cther employess and certain
directars as the Stock Option Committee of the Board may determine. A total of 125,000 shares of common stock were
reserved for issuance pursuant 1o oplions granted under the 1988 plan, and a total of 60,000 shares of common stack
were reserved for issuance pursuant to options granted under the 1998 plan. Both "incentive options" and "non-qualified
opticns” may be granted under the plans. Ali options under both plans will have an exercise price per share equal to, or in
excess of, the fair market value of a share of common stock at the date the option is granted and will have a maximum
option term of 10 years. Non-qualified stock options granted during 1997, 1996, 1995 and 1993 are immediately exercis-
able, and options granted prior to 1993 vest over a five-year period.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
modet with the following assumptions:

Years Ended Dacember 31,

1997 1996 1895
DIVIdend viBltd ... e e 3.27% 3.27% 2.75%
Expected life ..o e 10 vears 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility .. ..o s 13.57% 25.79% 27.06%
Risk-free interest 118 .o 6.93% 6.11% 6.28%

NoT1es TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STOCK CPTION PLANS (concluded)

Stock option activity is as follows:
©ok OpHo y Years Ended December 31,

1997 1946 1995
Weighted Weighted ~ Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exergise
- Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Shares under option:
Qutstanding at beginning of year ... 100,000 $11.47 70,500 $10.17 44,500 $ 8.27
GrAaMtBO ..ot s e 3,000 18.38 32,000 1375 28,000 12.75
EXEICISEU....vvivvieerieeceerveee e e erere e semaeas (6,000) 10.50 (2,500) 4.00 (2,000 4.00
Outstanding at end of year......coiicinnnn 97,000 $11.75 100,000 $11.47 70,500 $10.17
Options exercisable at end of year............o. 97,000 $11.75 100,000 §11.47 70,500 $10.17
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year .......coevreeiiienn, $ 4.51 $ 4.11 $ 4.36
Options outstanding consist of the following: December 31,
1997 1934 _
Weighied Averags Weighied Average
Remaining Contractual Remaining Contractual
Option price Shares Life in Years Shares Life In Years

B18.375 e e 3,000 10 e —

3750 e 29,000 9 32,000 10

T2 750 ccumiiissiaeeesemeeeieaeneeeiee e esne e e 28,000 8 28,000 9

BB75 e 37,000 6 39,000 7

B.000 e e — —_— 1,000 4

97,000 100,000

12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plan

The Bank provides pension benefits for all of its eligible officers and employees through membership in a defined benefit
plan of the Savings Banks Employees Retirement Association ("SBERA"). Each employee reaching the age of 21 and having
completed at least one year of continuous service and 1,000 hours of service during each twelve-month period beginning with
such employee’s date of employment becomes a Participant of the Plan. All Participants become fully vested after three years of
service or age 62 if earlier. Under the Plan, retirement benefits are based on years of credited service, the highest average com-
pensation (as defined), and the primary social security benefit. in addition, employees may make optional, voluntary contribu-
tions to the Plan under several methods. The optional contributions provide retirement benefits to the employee in addition to
those otherwise available under the Bank's Plan. Annual contributions by the Bank are based on assessments from SBERA.

Net periodic pension cost is as follows: Plan Years Ended October 31,

1997 1995 1995
{in Theusands)

Service cost - benefits earned during year.........c.ccccinnn, $128 $123 $ 82
Interest cost on projected benefits ... 107 95 87
Actual return on plan aSSe1S....o (273) (210) (221)
Net amortization and deferral ..., 3 3 3
AMOortzation Of NEE 0BG .. et e e 83 _66 99
Net periodic Pension COSt ... $ 48 $ 77 $ 50
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (concluded)

Pension expense for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 amounted to $49,000, $89,000, and $54,000,
respectively.

According to SBERA, a reconciliation of the funded status of the plan is as follows: Detober 31,
1997 1996

{in Thousands)
Plan assets at fair VEIIE ...t e $2.054 $1,808
Actuarial present value of projected benefit obligation..............ocoo v e, 1,660 1,424
Plan assets greater than projected benefit oBHGANON ..o, 394 384
Unamortized net obligation since adoption of SFAS NO. 87 ...c.oveooveeeeeeeeeevesn 26 29
Unrecognized N GaIN ... ..o et er ettt e ety (999) (944)
Panslon HaBHIY ... ettt e et $ (579) $ (531)

The accumulated benefit obligation (substantially alf vested) at October 31, 1997 amounted to $1,157.,000.

For the plan years ended October 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, actuarial assumptions include an assumed discount rate
on benefit obligations of 7.25%, 7.50% and 7.00%, respectively. An expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of
8.00%, and an annual saiary increase of 6.00% was utilized for all years,

401(k) Plan

Effective August 1, 1996, the Bank adopted a 401(k) Plan whereby each employee reaching the age of 21 and having
completed at least 1,000 hours of service in a twelve-month period, beginning with date of employment, becomes eligible
to participate in the Plan. Employees may contribute up to 15% of their compensation subject to certain limits based on
federal tax laws. The Bank does not make matching contributions to the Plan.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has granted loans to principal officers and directors and their affiliates
amounting to $21,000 at December 31, 1997 and $22,000 at December 31, 1996. In 1993, the Bank established a policy
whereby new loans (excluding passbook loans) cannot be granted to employees, officers or directors.

14. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of estimated falr values of
all financial instruments where it is practicable to estimate such values. In cases where quoted market prices are not avail-
able, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are signifi-
cantly affected by the assumptions used, inciuding the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the
derived fair valuie estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could
not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument. Statement No. 107 excludes certain financial instruments and
alt non-financial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do
not represent the underlying value of the Bank.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Bank in estimating fair value disclosures for financial instru-
ments:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts of cash, due from banks and interest-bearing deposits approximate
fair values.

w
i H

NoT1Ees TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (concluded)

Securities available for sale: Fair values for securities available for sale are based on quoted market prices, where avail-
able. If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Loans: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values are
based on carrying values. Fair values for loans are estimated using discounted cash flow ar;atyses, using interest raites
currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair valugs for non-performing
loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where applicable.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock: The carrying value of Federal Home Loan Bank stock is deemed to approximate fair
value based on the redemption provisions of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston.

Depaosits: The fair values of non-certificate accounts are, by definition, equal to the amount paye}bie o.n‘demand at the
reporting date which is their carrying amount. Fair values for cerlificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected

monthly maturities on time deposits,

Federal Home Loan Bank advances: The fair values of the Bank’s borrowings are estimategj using discounted cash
flow analyses based on the Bank’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Other borrowed funds: The carrying amounts of other borrowed funds approximate fair value.

Accrued interest: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate fair value.

Off-balance-sheet instruments: Fair values for off-balance-sheet lending commitments are based on fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreemen_ts and tbe ‘c_ounterlpan
ties’ credit standing. At December 31, 1997 and 1996, the fair value of commitments outstanding is not significant since

fees charged are not material,
The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31,
1997 19496
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
" {In Thousands}
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............cccco... $ 7,268 $ 7,268 $ 11,640 $ 11,640
Securities available forsale ..o 35,369 35,369 32,321 32,321
LOANS, NEL oveerr e e e e 172,839 174,668 151,166 152,381
Accrued interest receivable..........eel 1,243 1,243 1,060 1,060
Federal Home Loan Bank stock.............. 1,900 1,900 1,450 1,450
Financial fiabilities:
DEPOSHS ..oovicevr e 160,506 160,852 150,015 150,328
Federal Home Loan Bank advances....... 38,147 38,139 29,754 29,767
Other borrowed funds ..o 319 319 188 188
Accrued interest payable.......oe 205 205 582 582
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NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1997 _ 1996
Fourth Third  Second First Fourth Third Second First
{uarter Quarter OQuarter Quarter  Quarter Quarter Quarier Quarier
{in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)
Interest and dividend income .................. $ 4268 %4214 $4059 § 3,864 $3,734 $3,587 $3387 § 3,254
Interest eXPense........ i 2,143 2,102 1,995 1,820 1,844 1,778 1,679 1,655
Net interest inCoOMe ..o 2,125 2,112 2,064 1,944 1,890 1,809 1,708 1,599
Provision for [oan 108888 ...iccciniiiens 48 48 39 39 38 30 30 9
Net interest income, after pro-
vision for joan 108565 ..o.vvviivivcinieeenenn 2,077 2,064 2,025 1,905 1,852 1,779 1,678 1,580
Other NCOMEB..i e, 173 144 157 179 180 141 157 136
Operating exXpenses ..o 1,149 1,103 1,108 1,098 1,083 1,010 999 994
Income before income taxes.......ooeeeee. 1,101 1,106 1,074 986 969 910 836 732
Income tax provision ... 420 424 411 352 369 382 349 303
NEtINCOME ..o s e e ne e $ 681 % 681 % 663 $ 634 § 600 $ 528 $ 487 § 429
Eamings pershare.......cccooeeeeveecviiceianns $ 052 $ 052 8% 051 $ 049 $ 046 $ 040 $ 038 $ 033
Earnings per share-assuming
dilution for stock options ..........ce....... $ 051 $051 % 050 $ 048 $ 046 $ 040 $ 037 §$ 033
Cash dividends declared per share......... $ 0257 ¢ 012 $ 0.12 § 010 § 019" $ 009 $ 009 $ 008

(1) Includes a special dividend of $0.13 per share dectared on December 1, 1997.

(2) Includes a special dividend of $0.10 per share declared on December 2, 1996,

STOCKHOLDER INFORMA

Hingham Institution for Savings
55 Main Street

Hingham, MA 02043

(781) 749-2200

President and Chief
Exaculive Officer
Rabert H. Gaughen, Jr.

investor Inguiries
William M. Donovan, Jr.
Vice President - Administration

Transfer Agent and Registrar
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C.
111 Founders Plaza, Suite 1100

East Hartford, CT 06108

Stockholder inguiries and Dividend Reinvestment
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, L.1.C.

P.O. Box 750

Pittsburgh, PA 15230

STOCK DATA

Hingham institution for Savings common shares are listed
and traded on The Nasdag Stock Market under the symbol
HIFS.

As of December 31, 1987 there were approximately 508
stockholders of record, holding 644,344 outstanding shares
of commen siock. These shares do not include the number
of persons who hold their shares In nominee or street name
through various brokerage firms.

The following table presents the quarterly high and low bid
prices for the Bank’s common stock reportad by Nasdag.

(800) 288-8541

Independent Auditors
Wolf & Company, P.C.
One International Place
Boston, MA 02110

Special Counssl
Hale and Dorr

60 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

Form 10-K

A copy of the Bank's Annuai Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1987 as filed with
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, may be
obtained without charge by any stockhoider of the Bank
upon written request addressed to the Investor Relations
Department,

High Low
1897
First Quarter %19 1/4 $18 1/4
Second Quarter 213/4 18
Third Quarter 28 5/8 20 3/4
fFourth Quarter 29 26 3/4
1996
First Quarter $i5 513
Second Quarter 14 3/4 13 3/4
Third Quarter 15 1/2 14
Fourth Quarter 18 3/4 15

The closing sale price of the Bank’s common stock at
December 31, 1997 was $28.75 per share,
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